
 
EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 8 JUNE 2023 
5.00 PM 
 
Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 

 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.  

 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 
 

 

 3.1 2 March 2023 
 

3 - 8 

 3.2 21 March 2023 
 

9 - 12 

 3.3 25 April 2023 
 

13 - 14 

4. Pension Discretionary Policy Shared Cost AVC's 
 

15 - 28 

5. Introduction of New Values Across Peterborough City Council 
 

29 - 34 

 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact Dan 
Kalley on 01733 296334 as soon as possible. 
 
Did you know? All Peterborough City Council's meeting agendas are available 
online or via the modern.gov app. Help us achieve our environmental protection 
aspirations and view this agenda online instead of printing it.  

 
 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.   The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 

responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.  In the event of a continuous alarm sounding remain 
seated and await instruction from the duty Beadle 

Public Document Pack

1



 

Recording of Council Meetings 
Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use social media to report the 
proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public.  Audio-recordings of meetings may be published on 

the Council’s website. A protocol on this facility is available at:  
 
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pd
f 
 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: M Jamil (Vice Chairman), W Fitzgerald, Wiggin, J Allen, A Jones (Chair), B Rush and 
Sainsbury 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: Coles, Seager and Thulbourn 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Dan Kalley on telephone 01733 
296334 or by email – daniel.kalley@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 

2

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf


 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 5PM ON  

2 MARCH 2022 
BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOM, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH 

 
Committee Members Present: Councillors Jamil (Chair), Alison Jones (Vice-Chair), Fitzgerald, J 

Allen, Coles, Tyler and Wiggin.  

 

Officers Present: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pippa Turvey             Democratic and Constitutional Services 
Manager 

Mandy Pullen              Assistant Director HR and Development 

Lisa Brightey              Policy, Reward and Compliance Manager 

Adesuwa Omoregie     Interim Head of Legal and Deputy Monitoring 

Officer 

 

 

 

                                              
  
 
32. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 There were no apologies for absence. 

 
33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 No declarations of interest were received. 

 
34. 
 
34.1 
 
 
 
 
34.2 
 
 
 
 
34.3 
 
 
 
 
 
34.4 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON: 
 
10 OCTOBER 2022 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 10 October 2022 were agreed as true and accurate 
record. 
 
1 DECEMBER 2022 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2022 were agreed as true and accurate 
record. 
 
2 FEBRUARY 2023 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 2 February 2023 were agreed as true and accurate 
record. 
 
 
7 FEBRUARY 2023 
 

3



The minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2023 were agreed as true and accurate 
record. 
 

  

  
35. GENDER PAY GAP REPORT 

 

 The committee received a report on the Gender Pay Gap. 
 
The Assistant Director HR & Organisational Development introduced the report. Under 
the Local Government Act the Council was required to set out the report in a certain way. 
Members were informed that local authorities were below the national sector average, for 
the mean it was 14.8% and for the median it was 18%. The figures were a snapshot of 
the hourly rate of employees on a set date against gender only. This data considered two 
factors, namely the median and mean gender pay gap of hourly rates of pay between 
men and women. In terms of mean pay this had decreased from 6.3% in the previous 
year to 3.7% in the current year. In terms of median pay this had decreased from 4.2% 
last year to 0% this year.  
 
The reason for the improved figures was the increase in women in the middle/upper 
quartiles now working at the Council. There had been an increase in male employees 
across the Council except for the upper quartile. 
 
With regards to the ethnicity pay gap there was no legal requirement to report on this 
data, however it was felt appropriate to bring to the committee’s attention as it 
demonstrated the forward movement of the Council. The challenge was to try and 
eliminate any pay gap. The mean pay gap was currently 10.6% and the median pay gap 
was 10.1%. This was not as good as the Council would want it to be and more work was 
required to reduce this gap and officers were investigating the reasons why this gap was 
high. There were some mitigating factors outlined in the report, this included that all 
incremental points on the salary scale were automatically applied to all posts. The ONS 
figures state the median pay for white employees was £12.14 and for ethnic minorities it 
was £12.11, this was a gap of 2.3%, this showed there was still some work for the Council 
to do. There was a caveat to the Council’s data as there were some gaps in the reporting 
of this. There were 143 employees who had given their ethnicity as other than white, while 
there were still 206 employees who had put prefer not to say or not completed at all. 
Although it was not mandated for staff to complete this it was now being encouraged as 
it was to be reported on in the future. It was likely the data would change moving forward 
if more reporting was captured. A number of other areas were being reviewed to help 
close these gaps including more internal apprenticeships being taken up, including some 
senior managers, along with more succession planning to ensure staff were retained 
within the organisation. 
 
The Employment Committee debated the report and in summary, key points raised and 
responses to questions included: 
 

 As officers reviewed recruitment processes on an ongoing basis some of the data 
would be used to drive forward what management wanted the Council to look like 
in the future in terms of its staff make-up. This would help identify the right 
channels when recruiting to the organisation in the future. 

 Any surveys that were sent out to staff would be more general than just focusing 
on gender and ethnicity. Information from these surveys filtered down through a 
number of boards and impacted the action plan that was in place and looked at 
all protected characteristics. 

 Officers needed to bear in mind that staff working at Aragon were under different 
terms and conditions to those employees at the Council. However, it would be 

4



useful to compare some of the data held by Aragon and other organisations such 
as City College. 

 It would be useful to have one spreadsheet or data source that updated on a 
regular basis so that officers could pinpoint the up-to-date data at any time. 
Members were informed that there was work underway to try and automate a 
number of systems and data sources. 

 With regards to the workforce boards if there was a lack of expertise or knowledge 
the board would look at bringing in people who did possess that experience or 
knowledge. 

 The action plan around equality monitoring was updated regularly and actions 
were added as the plan was updated. Officers could therefore look at who they 
approached when needing further expertise to ensure that the right people and 
organisations were approached. 

 The ethnicity data was taken directly from data held by payroll. It was important 
to try and encourage officers who had not completed their equality data to try and 
do so, enabling the Council to report their ethnicity data more accurately, however 
members were reminded that this could not be mandated. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED (unanimous) to: 

 
1. Note the results of the gender pay gap calculations of 31 March 2022 that must be 
reported on the relevant gov.uk portal by 30 March 2023.  
2. Note the results of the ethnicity pay gap calculations as of 31 March 2022 which will 
be published on the councils website 
 

 
 

 
36. ANNUAL PAY POLICY STATEMENT 

 

 The committee received a report on the Annual Pay Policy Statement. 
 
The Assistant Director HR & Organisational Development introduced the report and 
confirmed that under the Localism Act 2011 the Council had a legal duty to have a pay 
policy statement and this needed to be approved by Full Council. The Council reported 
on the median and mean salary. In terms of the median salary this had increased from 
January 2022 by almost £2,000 to £34,723. The mean salary had also increased from 
£35,137 to £35,575. The average salary of the lowest 10% of Council staff was £21,143. 
The Council was required to measure the lowest salary against the highest salary at the 
Council to ensure that this was not more than 20 times the difference. At the current time 
the difference between the highest paid and lowest paid was 8.5 times, this was down 
from 9 times the salary last year. One of the reasons for the smaller gap was that there 
were now fewer employees occupying the lower paid roles. 
 
Members were informed the report still referenced shared posts with Cambridgeshire 
County Council as at the time the data was extracted there were a number of shared 
posts still being undertaken. It was also noted that there was still consultation ongoing in 
people services that affected a number of shared posts. 
 
The Employment Committee debated the report and in summary, key points raised and 
responses to questions included: 
 

 Officers would be happy to look at modal averages to compare those salaries that 
were most common across the organisation. 

 

5



RESOLVED: 
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED (unanimous) to note the content of the Pay 

Policy Statement for 2023/24 and recommended approval at Full Council on 22 March 
2023 
 

 
 
37. EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE START TIME 2023/24 

 

 The Employment Committee agreed that the start time for the Employment Committee in 
2023/24 was to be 5pm. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED (unanimous) to agree the start of the 
Employment Committee as 5pm. 

 
Chairman 

2 March 2023 
5pm – 5.27pm 

  

6



 
 

 

7



This page is intentionally left blank

8



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 10AM ON  

21 MARCH 2023 
BOURGES/VIERSEN, PETERBOROUGH 

 
Committee Members Present: Councillors Jamil (Chair), Alison Jones (Vice-Chair), Ayres, 

Howard, J Allen, Coles and Wiggin.  

 

Officers Present: Matt Gladstone             Executive Director Corporate Services & S151 
Officer 

Dan Kalley                  Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Sarah Spendelow        HR Manager 

Mandy Pullen               Assistant Director HR & Development 

Adesuwa Omoregie     Interim Head of Legal and Deputy Monitoring 

Officer 

                                               
  
 
38. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Fitzgerald and Tyler. Councillors 
Ayres and Howard were in attendance as substitutes. 
 

39. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No declarations of interest were received. 
 

40. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 
 In accordance with Standing Orders, the Committee was asked to determine whether item 

4 & 5 ‘Appointment of Executive Director Adult Services and Executive Director Children’s 
Services and Young People and Determination of Salary, as defined by Paragraph 1 and 
4 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972, should be exempt and the 
press and public excluded from the meeting when they were discussed, or whether the 
public interest in disclosing this information outweighed the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption.  
 
The Committee resolved (unanimous) to agree the exclusion of the press and public for 

agenda item 4 and 5. 
 

  
 
41. APPOINTMENT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ADULT SERVICES AND 

DETERMINATION OF SALARY 
 

 As agreed at item 3 the meeting moved into exempt session. 
 

The Committee at this point interviewed for the position of Executive Director Adult 
Services and determined the salary. 

9



 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED (unanimous) to: 
 

1) Appoint Stephen Taylor to the position of Executive Director Adult Services. 
 
 

 
42. APPOINTMENT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHILDREN’S SERVICES AND YOUNG 

PEOPLE AND DETERMINATION OF SALARY 
 

 As agreed at item 3 the meeting moved into exempt session. 
 

The Committee at this point interviewed for the position of Executive Director Children’s 
Services and Young People and determined the salary. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED (unanimous) to: 
 

1) Appoint John Gregg to the position of Executive Director Children’s Services and 
Young People. 

2) Delegate authority to the Chief Executive to commence the executive search 
and selection process for a Service Director: Education and Service Director 
Targeted Support & Safeguarding. These are both critical roles which are vacant 
following the review of the shared working arrangements with Cambridgeshire 
County Council. 

 
 
 

 
 

Chairman 
26 January 2023 

1pm-4pm 
  

10



 
 

 

11



This page is intentionally left blank

12



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 1.30PM ON  

25 APRIL 2022 
MEMBERS LOUNGE, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH 

 
Committee Members Present: Councillors Jamil (Chair), Alison Jones (Vice-Chair), Fitzgerald, J 

Allen, Coles, Tyler and Wiggin.  

 

Officers Present: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Also Present:                       

Dan Kalley                  Constitution and Democratic Services Manager 
Sarah Spendelow        HR Manger 

Ed Morris-Jones             Senior HR Advisor 

Adesuwa Omoregie     Interim Head of Legal and Deputy Monitoring 

Officer 

Adrian Chapman        Executive Director Place and Economy 

 

Councillors Steve Allen, Simons and Cereste 

 

                                              
  
 
43. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

 There were no apologies for absence. 
 

44. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No declarations of interest were received. 
 

45. 
 
 

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC: 
 

Members of the committee agreed to go into exempt session. 
  
46. RESTRUCTURE OF SERVICE AREA 

 

 As per item 3 the committee agreed to go into exempt session. 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED (unanimous) to: 

 

1. Approve the Place and Economy restructure proposal and the creation of 3 new 
Service Director Roles in the Place and Economy department  
 

2. To proceed immediately with the interview for the role of Service Director 
Housing and Communities 

 
 

13



47. APPOINTMENT OF SERVICE DIRECTOR HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES AND 
DETERMINATION OF SALARY 
 

 As per item 3 the Committee agreed to continue in exempt session. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED (unanimous) to: 

 
1. Appoint Rob Hill to the position of Service Director Housing and Communities. 

 

 
 
  

  
 

Chairman 
25 April 2023 

1.30pm – 3.20pm 

14



 

 
EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

8 June 2023 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Report of: Mandy Pullen Assistant Director HR and Development 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Coles, Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate 
Governance 

Contact Officer(s): Mandy Pullen, Assistant Director HR and Development Tel. 863628 

 

PENSION DISCRETIONARY POLICY SHARED COST AVC’s 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

FROM: Employment Committee Deadline date: Next opportunity to 
onboard into the scheme is July 
2023 
 

 
     It is recommended that the Employment Committee: 

 
1. Take note of the information in this report detailing information about  

a. Shared Costs AVC  
b. Potential savings for the council 

2. Agree to change the Pension Discretion Policy to allow for Shared Costs AVCs to be available 
for our staff 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report is submitted to Employment Committee following the Corporate Management Team 

agreeing to implement an Employee Benefits Platform via Vivup Ltd in October 2022. 
 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT  
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to   
 
 Provide the Committee with information about Shared Cost AVCs and the associated 

potential savings for the Council 

 To obtain views and agreement on changing the Pensions Discretion Policy to allow 
Shared Costs AVCs to be available to our employees 

 
2.2 This report is for the Employment Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 2.3.2.7 

 
To determine pension issues which relate to auto enrolment. 
 

3. TIMESCALES 
 

  

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting  

 

 
 
 

15



4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 Salary Sacrifice and Shared Costs AVCs 
   
A Shared Cost AVC scheme enables both the organisation and employees to make extra savings 
in National Insurance contributions (NICs) when compared to a standard Additional Voluntary 
Contribution scheme. With a standard AVC the employee only makes savings in Income Tax, 
and the employer make no savings. 

A Shared Cost AVC is where an employee opts to pay Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) 
under regulation 17 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations 2013; an 
employer can decide to also contribute to the employee’s AVC contribution. 

 
4.2 How it works 

 
The member chooses their contribution amount, and all but £1 of this is taken via salary 
sacrifice (this is what makes it ‘Shared Cost’). 

LGPS regulations permit Shared Cost AVCs and there is no impact on the main pension benefits 
of the employee. 

4.3 Potential Savings  

We currently have 1178 LGPS members, with 17 current AVC members.  This equates to an 
annual value of £59,566. 

If we assume 90% of the current AVC members (15) transfer to the salary sacrifice shared cost 
AVC arrangement (AVC Wise), the Council can expect to achieve annual savings of around 
£7,490, (£5,133 after fees) based on 14.3% employer saving.   

Continuing to market and communicate the scheme to our staff is expected to increase the take-
up to a minimum of 7.5% (88 members) and applying the same average AVC values as above 
and use 7.5% of take up, the Council could achieve annual savings of around £44,945 (£30,801 
after fees).  This is the ultimate three-year target. 

4.4 AVC Provider 

The shared cost AVC salary sacrifice scheme is managed by Prudential via AVC Wise, a sister 
company of our Tax Advisers, PSTAX, and of Vivup Ltd whose benefit platform we have 
introduced in June 2023. 

Their charges are based on a percentage of the amount of salary sacrificed in the respective 
invoicing period. The percentage applicable to this is 4.5% (plus VAT).  

As the total employer NIC and apprenticeship levy saving is currently 14.30% of the salary 
sacrificed, the cost of introducing, implementing, and administering the Shared Cost AVC scheme 
facilitated by AVC Wise can be met comfortably from these savings, leaving the Council with a 
net saving. 

5. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 

5.1 This recommendation links to the Council’s Corporate Priorities: 
 

1. Sustainable Future City Council 
 How we Work 

 How we Serve 

 How we Enable 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16



6. CONSULTATION 
 

6.1 CLT approved the implementation of the Vivup Benefits platform and associated salary sacrifice 
schemes, of which this is one, in October 2022. 
 

7. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT  
 

7.1 The anticipated outcomes of this change would be  

 Greater employee engagement in arranging AVC payments due to the potential savings 
an employee can expect 

 Further potential savings for the council 
 

8. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 
 

8.1 It is recommended that the Committee agree to changing the Pension Discretion Policy because  

 of the potential additional savings that could be realised by the council 

 improved employee engagement 

 potential increase in employee take-up in AVCs and engagement in the LGPS  

 
9. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
9.1 The alternative option is to remain at the current status quo. 

 
10. IMPLICATIONS 

 
 Financial Implications 

 
10.1 Charges are based on a percentage of the amount of salary sacrificed in the respective invoicing 

period. The percentage applicable to this is 4.5% (plus VAT). However, as the total employer NIC 
and apprenticeship levy saving is currently 14.30% of the salary sacrificed, the cost of introducing, 
implementing, and administering the Shared Cost AVC scheme facilitated by AVC Wise can be 
met comfortably from these savings, leaving the Council with a net saving as detailed in 
paragraph 4.3. 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

10.2 There are no legal implications  
 

 Equalities Implications 
 

10.3 There would not be any equalities implications as the scheme would be available to all employees 
who have a pension through LGPS. 
 

11. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 

 
11.1 The Shared Cost Additional Voluntary Contributions Scheme Proposal from AVC Wise was used 

to prepare this report. 
 

12. APPENDICES 
 

12.1 The draft Pensions Discretion Policy is in appendix 1, the proposed change to the policy is here. 
 

 
 
 
 
  

17



 
  

18



 

 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

Discretionary Policy – Part A  

(2014 scheme) 

 
Background 

The regulations of the LGPS require every employer to (i) issue a written policy statement on how it will 
exercise the various discretions provided by the scheme, (ii) keep it under review and (iii) revise it as 
necessary.  

 
Flexible Retirement 
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 Regulation 30 (6) 
Local government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions and Savings Regulations 
2014 Regulation 11 (2) 

Peterborough City Council will consider requests from employees aged 55 or over to reduce their hours, 
or move to a position on a lower grade, and elect in writing to draw some or all of the pension benefits 
already built up.  Where there is a cost to Peterborough City Council it is unlikely that the request will be 

agreed. 

In addition the employee would need to:- 
● Reduce their working week by at least 40% or 
● Reduce their grade by at least two grades. 
The revised pay plus standard pension must not exceed the pay prior to flexible retirement. 
Employees who have flexibly retired may not subsequently apply for positions within a Peterborough City 
Council employment that would result in either an increase in hours or being paid at a higher grade. 

This does not preclude younger employees requesting flexible working but without the payment of their 
retirement benefits. 

Flexible Retirement 
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulation 2013 Regulation 30 (8) 

Where flexible retirement is approved it is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to waive any 
reduction applied to the pension benefit due to the early payment. 

Peterborough City Council will not waive, in whole or in part, actuarial reduction on benefits which a 
member voluntarily draws before normal pension age. 

85 Year Rule 
Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions and Savings) 
Regulations 2014 Schedule 2 Paragraphs 1(2) and 2 (2) 

It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to “switch on” the 85-year rule for a member voluntarily 
drawing benefits on or after age 55 and before age 60 unless: - 
(i) it is to bring an earlier deferred benefit into payment following redundancy, or efficiency 
retirement of an existing employee from a current job in Peterborough City Council, or 

(ii) if there are compelling, compassionate* reasons to do so. 

19



Waiving of actuarial reduction 
Local government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions and Savings) 
 Regulations 2014 3(1), Schedule 2, paragraph 2(1) and 2(2), B30(5) and B30A(5) 

It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to waive, on compassionate grounds the actuarial 
reduction applied to benefits from pre 1/4/14 membership where the employer has “switched on” the 85 
year rule for a member voluntarily drawing benefits on or after age 55 and before age 60.   

Shared Cost Additional Pension Contributions 
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 Regulation 16 (2) (e) & 
Regulation 16 (4) (d) 

It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to contribute to a Shared Cost Additional Pension 
Contribution contract. 

Shared Cost Additional Pension Contributions 
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 Regulation 16 (16) 

It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to extend the 30 day deadline for a member to elect for a 
shared cost APC upon return from a period of absence from work with permission with no pensionable 
pay (otherwise than because of illness or injury, relevant child related leave or reserve force service leave). 

Additional Pension  
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2014 Regulation 31 

 
It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to grant additional pension to an active member, or 
within six months of ceasing to be an active member by reason of redundancy or business efficiency.   

Unless an employee who would be eligible for a lump sum compensation payment under our 
Discretionary Compensation Policy requests that they be awarded, instead, additional pension under the 
LGPS regulations, which is actuarially equivalent in value to the lump sum compensation payment (in 
excess of the statutory redundancy payment) that would otherwise have been paid under our 
Discretionary policy, provided that the award of additional pension would not exceed the statutory limit.  

The following discretions are not compulsory to include in the Policy Statement but are recommended to 

be included: 

Late application (after 12 months of joining) to aggregate two periods of membership  
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013   
Regulation 22 (7) and (8) 

It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to consider allowing the aggregation of two periods of 

LGPS membership after twelve months of joining unless: 
(i) the scheme member has requested that investigations commence within the twelve month time 
limit, or 
(ii) if there is reason to believe that the individual would not have known of the need to request an 
investigation into potential aggregation within the twelve month time limit, and the HR &/or pension files 
support this 
(iii) it would have been unreasonable for the scheme member to understand that they had more than 
one period of service (this being particularly an issue where individuals hold multiple jobs). 
 
Transfer in of previous pension rights after twelve months of joining  
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013   
Regulation 100 (6) 

It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to consider extending the time limit for a transfer in of 
previous pension rights to proceed after twelve months of joining unless: 
(i) the scheme member has requested that investigations commence within the twelve month time 
limit, or 
(ii) if there is reason to believe that the individual would not have known of the need to request an 
investigation into potential transfer in of previous pension rights within the twelve month time limit, and the 
HR &/or pension files support this, and 
(iii) with the agreement of the administering authority. 

 

20



Calculation of pension tier  
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013  
Regulations 9 and 10 

The tiered contribution rate for each employee will be based on the total pensionable pay in  
the previous financial year. 
 
The contribution rate will be reassessed annually on implementation/application (regardless 
of when the award is made) of the annual pay award.  Reassessment will take place at any  
point in the year in the following circumstances:- 
● Promotion 
● Demotion 
● Incremental progression 
● Pay award 
● Acting up starts/Acting up ceases 
● Contractual Allowance starts/Contractual Allowance ceases 
● Contractual Hours increase/Contractual Hours decrease. 
● Additional hours increase or decrease or 
● When there is any significant change in pay. 

 

 
Shared Cost Additional Voluntary Contribution scheme  
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013   
Regulation 17  Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions & 
 Savings) Regulations 2014  Regulation 15 (1) (d) 
 
It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to contribute towards a shared cost additional voluntary 
contributions scheme. 
The Council will pay shared cost AVCs where an employee has elected to pay AVCs by salary sacrifice.  
The amount of these employer shared cost AVCs will not exceed the amount of salary sacrificed by the 
employee.  This is a Council discretion which is subject to the employee meeting the conditions for 
acceptance into the salary sacrifice shared cost AVC scheme and may be withdrawn or changed at any 
time. 

 
Assumed Pensionable Pay   
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013  
Regulations 21(4)(a)(iv), 21(4)(b)(iv), 21 (5) 
 
Regular lump sum payments will not be included in the calculation of Assumed Pensionable  
Pay. 

21



Local Government Pension Scheme 

Discretionary Policy – Part B (2008 scheme) 

 
Background 
 
The regulations of the LGPS require every employer to (i) issue a written policy statement on how it will 
exercise the various discretions provided by the scheme, (ii) keep it under review and (iii) revise it as 
necessary.  

 
LGPS (Benefits, Membership & Contributions) Regulations 2007   
Regulation 12 
 
It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to increase total membership. 
(This decision is entirely spent after 30th September 2014 as additional pension can only be awarded to 
an active member or within six months of leaving under redundancy or business efficiency). 

 
LGPS (Benefits, Membership & Contributions) Regulations 2007   
Regulation 30 (2) 
 

It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to release pension early unless:- 
(i) it is to bring an earlier deferred benefit into payment following redundancy, or efficiency 
retirement of an existing employee from a current job in Peterborough City Council, or 
(ii) if there are compelling, compassionate* reasons to do so. 

 
LGPS (Benefits, Membership & Contributions) Regulations 2007   
Regulation 30 (5) 
 
It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to waive the actuarial reduction on early payment of 
pension unless:- 
(i) the payment relates to someone who is being made redundant or taking efficiency retirement 

from active employment with Peterborough City Council, or 
(ii) if there are compelling, compassionate* reasons to do so. 

 
LGPS (Benefits, Membership & Contributions) Regulations 2007   
Regulation 30A (3) 
 
It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to grant an application for early payment of a suspended 
tier 3 ill health pension on or after age 55 and before age 60 unless there are compelling, 
compassionate* reasons for doing so. 

 
LGPS (Benefits, Membership & Contributions) Regulations 2007 Regulation 30A (5)  
It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to waive on compassionate grounds the actuarial 
reduction applied to benefits paid early under Regulation 30 (A).  

  

22



Local Government Pension Scheme 

Discretionary Policy – Part B (2008 scheme)  

Background 

There are further discretions that are not compulsory to include in the Policy Statement but that are 

recommended to be included: 

LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008  
Regulation 22 (2) 

It is the policy of Peterborough City Council to consider an extension in cases where the member of staff 

was not notified of their rights to pay contributions in respect of a period of absence before returning to 
work, or ceasing to be employed without returning to work. The extension would be for one month from 
the date that they were notified of their right to pay. 

 
 
LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008  
Regulation 16 (4) 
 

It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to consider allowing the aggregation of two periods of 
membership after twelve months of joining unless: 
(iv) the scheme member has requested that investigations commence within the twelve month time 
limit, or 
(v) if there is reason to believe that the individual would not have known of the need to request an 
investigation into potential aggregation within the twelve month time limit, and the HR &/or pension files 
support this 
(vi) it would have been unreasonable for the scheme member to understand that they had more than 
one period of service (this being particularly an issue where individuals hold multiple jobs) 
 
LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008  
Regulation 83 (8) 
 
It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to consider extending the time limit for a transfer in of 
previous pension rights to proceed after twelve months of joining unless: 
(iv) the scheme member has requested that investigations commence within the twelve month time 
limit, or 
(v) if there is reason to believe that the individual would not have known of the need to request an 
investigation into potential transfer in of previous pension rights within the twelve month time limit, and the 
HR &/or pension files support this. 
  

23



Local Government Pension Scheme 

Discretionary Policy – Part C (1997 regulations) 

 
Background   

The following three regulations apply to those employees who left on, or who have an award of deferred 

benefits in respect of membership up to, a date between 1st April 1998 and 31st March 2008 (inclusive).   

LGPS Regulations 1997  

Regulation 31 (2) 

It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to release pension early unless:- 
(iii) it is to bring an earlier deferred benefit into payment following redundancy, or efficiency 
retirement of an existing employee from a current job in Peterborough City Council, or 
(iv) if there are compelling, compassionate* reasons to do so 

LGPS Regulations 1997  
Regulation 31 (5) 

 It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to waive the actuarial reduction on early payment of 

pension unless:- 
(i) the payment relates to someone who is being made redundant or taking efficiency retirement 
from active employment with PCC or 
(ii) if there are compelling, compassionate* reasons to do so. 

LGPS Regulations 1997  
Regulation 31 (7A) 

It is not the policy of Peterborough City Council to agree at normal retirement date to the payment of 
benefits resulting from an earlier opt out.  

Applicable to whole document   

*Definition of compelling, compassionate reasons  

(i) The member can clearly demonstrate that they have a dependant, with a lifetime expectancy of 
more than twelve months, who is in need of the member’s constant supervision due to a long term illness 
and as a result the member is suffering from severe financial hardship OR 
(ii) There is another substantial reason (not relating to caring for a dependant who is ill) where the 
member can demonstrate that they are facing very severe, ongoing financial hardship and will be doing 
so on a long term basis. 

In exceptional circumstances, and only with the prior approval of the chief executive, the council may 
vary the terms of this policy on an individual basis. 

This policy is subject to statute, regulations and council policy.  The policy confers no contractual rights, 
and may be changed at any time as necessary.  Only the version of the policy which is current at the 
time a relevant event occurs (to the member or deferred member) will be the one applied to that member 
/ deferred member. 

Each discretion will be dealt with independently. 
 
References:  
LGPS Regulations 1997  
LGPS (Benefits, Membership & Contributions) Regulations 2007   
LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008   
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013   
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2014  

24



Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions & Savings) Regulations 2014  
Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) Regulations 2015 
 
TABLE DETAILING PAY THAT IS PENSIONABLE AND PAY THAT IS INCLUDED IN THE TIER DETERMINATION. 

 

PENSIONABLE 
INCLUDED IN TIER 
 

DESCRIPTION CALCULATION BASIS 

Y Y Basic pay SCP divided by 37 

Y Y 
Non Contractual 
Overtime/Additional Hrs 

Plain less than 37 hours 

SCP divided by 37 

Y Y 
Non Contractual Overtime 

Plain over 37 hrs 
SCP divided by 37 - pre 

authorised up to SCP 43 

Y Y 
Non Contractual Overtime 
Over 37 hours 

Bas ic pay x 1.5 - 

minimum element 15 
minutes - SCP 26 and 
below only 

Y Y 
Non Contractual Overtime 

Sundays over 37 hours 

Bas ic pay x 2 - minimum 
element 15 minutes - 

SCP 26 and below only 

Y Y 
Non Contractual Overtime 
Bank Holidays  

 Basic pay x 2 - 

minimum element 15 
minutes - SCP 26 and 

below only 

Y Y 
Contractual Overtime Over 

37 hours Monday-Saturday 

Bas ic pay x 1.5 - for 
Monday to Saturday - 

SCP 26 and below only 

Y Y 
Contractual Overtime Over 

37 hours Sunday 

Bas ic Pay x  2 for Sunday 
working - SCP 26 and 

below only 

Y Y 
Weekend Enhancement 
Saturdays 

Bas ic Pay x 0.5 

minimum element 15 
minutes as part of 

normal working week 

Y Y 
Weekend Enhancement 

Sundays 

Bas ic Pay x 0.5 
minimum element 15 

minutes as part of 
normal working week 

Y Y 
Shift Allowance 
(24 hrs) 

Bas ic Pay x 21% - set up 

as  permanent addition -

SCP 26 and below only 

Y Y 
Shift Allowance (More than 
15 – Less than 19 hours) 

Bas ic Pay x 14% - set up 
as  permanent addition - 

SCP 26 and below only 

Y Y 
Shift Allowance (More than 

11 – Less than 15 hours) 

Bas ic Pay x 7% - set up 
as  permanent addition - 

SCP 26 and below only 

Y Y Split Shift 
Bas ic Pay x 1% - set up 

as  permanent addition - 

SCP 26 and below only 

Y Y Night Rate 

Bas ic Pay + 1/3 - SCP 26 

and below - night 

workers can claim 

weekend payments 

N N Stand by per session   

N N Call Out minimum 
Bas ic pay @ 2 hours - all 
employees up to SCP 49 

N N 
Call Out hourly  
Monday – Saturday 

Bas ic pay x 1.5 - 

minimum element 15 
minutes - SCP 26 and 

below only 

25



 

N N 
Call out hourly  

Sunday 

Bas ic Pay x 2 - minimum 

element 15 minutes - 
SCP 26 and below only 

 
 

N N Call out Plain 

Bas ic pay - plain time 

paid to employees on 
SCP 27 - 49 Al l  days -

minimum element 15 

minutes 

N N 
Call out hours  

Bank holidays 

Bas ic pay x 2 - minimum 

element 15 minutes - 
SCP 26 and below only 

N N 
Call out hours  

Bank holidays 

Bas ic Pay  - plain time 
paid to employees on 
SCP 27 - 49 

N N 
Call out  

Travelling time 

Bas ic pay - minimum 15 
minutes - maximum 0.5 

hrs . - a l l employees 

Y Y Acting Up Allowance 
Determined rate - 

payable after 4 weeks 
regular review 

N N Honoraria 
Determined rate – one 

off payment 

Y Y Market Supplement 
Determined rate - 

regular review 

N N Retention Payments 

Any payment as an 
inducement not to 

terminate employment 

before the payment is 
made 

N N 
Payment in consideration of 
loss of future pensionable 

payments 

12 months full pay/ 6 
months half pay /no pay 

award 

N N Compensation (Equal Pay)  

Y Y All Arrears  

Y Y First Aid  

Y Y 
Non -Consolidated 

Allowance 

Payment to ra ise basic 

pay to agreed local 

l iving wage amount or 
other. 

 
To be assessed on a twelve monthly arrears basis at commencement of financial year.  

  

26



GUIDANCE NOTE ON MEMBERSHIP OF THE LGPS (not part of LGPS Discretionary policy) 
 
The regulations state that Active members of the LGPS are:- 

2.—(1) An employee of a body listed in— (a) Chapter 1 of Part 2 of; (b) Chapter 1 of Part 5 of; or (c) Schedule 2 to 
the 1997 LGPS Regulations is an active member of the Scheme. 

(2) But a person is not an active member unless he is employed under a contract of employment of more than three 

months’ duration. 
(3) An active member of the 1997 Scheme is an active member of the Scheme for as long as he continues in Local 

Government Pension Scheme employment. 

MEMBERSHIP OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME IS AVAILABLE TO:- 

PCC EMPLOYEES  

All Peterborough City Council employees providing their contract is for three months or more and they are aged 

less than 75 years.  Membership of the Scheme is automatic, but employees have the right to opt out.  

FIXED TERM CONTRACT EMPLOYEES WHO INITIALLY HAD A CONTRACT OF LESS THAN THREE MONTHS WHICH 
WAS EXTENDED TO MORE THAN 3 MONTHS  

If the contract is extended beyond three months, membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme becomes 
automatic, but the employee would have the right to opt out.  The date of commencement in the scheme would 

be from the date the contract is extended.  The employee would have the option of back dating their membership 
commencement date to the start of the contract.  

CORONER  
REGISTRATION OFFICER 

MEMBERSHIP OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME IS NOT AVAILABLE TO: 

FIXED TERM CONTRACT EMPLOYEES WITH CONTRACT OF LESS THAN 3 MONTHS 

There is no pension scheme available for those employees with a contract of less than three months.  

OTHER STATUTORY PENSION SCHEMES 
Statute states that if a person's employment entitles him to belong to another statutory pension scheme, that 

employment does not entitle him to be a member of the LGPS, unless that other scheme was made under section 
7 of the Superannuation Act 1972.  This rule applies to:- 

TEACHERS (TEACHERS PENSION SCHEME - TPS) 

It is very important to note that a change to job description may result in the need to change pension scheme and 
this must be taken into account when teaching jobs are changed from teachers to advisors or some other non 

teaching role.  Such a change will necessitate a change of pension scheme.  

Also, whilst on secondment to a non teaching role a teacher may retain membership of the TPS but if the post is 

made permanent then the teacher would need to be transferred to the LGPS.  

YOUTH & COMMUNITY WORKERS (TEACHERS PENSION SCHEME) 

Organisers employed as a youth and community worker by a local education authority (for the purposes of their 

functions under section 15 or 508 of the 1996 Education Act) where employment as an organiser commenced 
before 1 January 1977.  

 

 

27

http://www.opsi.gov.uk/si/si1997/71612--b.htm#4
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/si/si1997/71612--p.htm#127
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/si/si1997/71612--s.htm#2


This page is intentionally left blank

28



 

 
EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

8 JUNE 2023 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Report of: Mandy Pullen, Assistant Director HR & Development 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Andy Coles, Cabinet Member for Legal, Finance and 
Corporate Services 

Contact Officer: Debbie Hiller, Organisational Development Manager Tel. 07847 
491828 

 

INTRODUCTION OF NEW VALUES ACROSS PETERBOROUGH CITY 

COUNCIL 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

FROM: Employment Committee Deadline date: Full Council on 21st June 
2023 
 

 
     It is recommended that the Employment Committee recommend that Full Council: 
 

1. Approve the Peterborough City Council Values as outlined in this report. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report is submitted to Employment Committee due to the concerning matters relevant to 

expectations and behaviours of employees. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT  

 
2.1 The proposed values, as in the Appendix of this document, have been collated from feedback 

from employees, members and associates during January and February 2023. The draft of 6 
Values has been approved by the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT), the Extended Corporate 
Leadership Team (ECLT), Cabinet Policy Forum (CPF), Improvement Panel and Financial 
Sustainability Working Group (FSWG).  
 
 

2.2 This report is for Employment Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference No 2.3.2.5(c) 
 
To consider, and recommend appropriate actions where necessary in response to, executive 
proposals relating to:  
 
(c) other executive human resources matters. 
 
 

3. TIMESCALES 
 
 

Is this a Major Policy Item/Statutory 
Plan? 

NO If yes, date for Cabinet 
meeting  

 

 
 
 

29



4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 Methodology 
During October 2022, as part of the Corporate Strategy outcomes, CLT requested that a set of 
values be agreed to be adopted by all staff. These values needed to be aligned to the deliverables 
of the Corporate Strategy under the Sustainable Future City Council theme – how we work, how 
we serve, how we enable. The values, once adopted, should be incorporated in the Code of 
Conduct for employees. They should also form a framework for performance discussions, 
recruitment of staff, promotion of staff, and be publicised and visible to all residents and 
associates. 
 
Consultation with staff was undertaken and when the Values were shared with CLT, ECLT and 
Cabinet Policy Forum, it was felt that consultation had not been inclusive or extensive enough. 
The recommendation was that we should go out to all staff, members and strategic partners to 
hold face-to-face workshops to discuss and agree these values in a collaborative way. 
 
In January and February 2023, 14 face-to-face workshops were held, inviting all employees, 
members and strategic partner organisations to attend. During each workshop, participants were 

asked what personal values were important to them and why. The outputs from each workshop 
were then used to shape the values framework that would be proposed as enabling how we want 
our Council to demonstrate these values in our day-to-day interactions with each other and 
residents. 
 

4.2 Outcomes from workshops 
Feedback from staff who attended these workshops was positive with many staff expressing how 
important it was to be given the opportunity to put forward their ideas, and to be able to collaborate 
with colleagues, especially those they would not get a chance to work with if it wasn’t for these 
workshops. Feedback from members who attended the workshops was also positive with the 
Leader voicing his recognition of the good work involved. 
 
There were many good ideas discussed and engagement was high. There were also suggestions 
from some contributors who could not attend in person – a total of nearly 400 contributions was 
recorded, reviewed and condensed. From nearly 50 different values that were suggested, these 
were amalgamated to produce 6 main values. These are: 

 Inclusive 

 Respect 

 Integrity  

 Transparent 

 Collaborative 

 Innovative 

 
Staff have been asking for updates as the workshops were held some 4 months ago, and so 
regular updates have been posted on the internal communication platform, Insite.  
 

4.3 Consultation and approval 
These draft values were shared with CLT and ECLT on 5th April 2023, and on 11th April and some 
amendments were suggested and added to the draft. 
 
The values were shared with the Improvement Panel on 18th April 2023 and Financial 
Sustainability Working Group on 26th April 2023. 
 

5. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 

5.1 The recommendation links to the Council’s Corporate Priorities: 
 

Sustainable Future City Council 

 How we Work 

 How we Serve 

 How we Enable 

30



 
 

6. CONSULTATION 
 

6.1 As outlined above in workshops, CLT, ECLT, CPF and FSWG. 
 

6.2 This recommendation has been considered by:  
 Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) 

 Cabinet Policy Forum (CPF) 

 Financial Sustainability Working Group (FSWG) 

 Improvement Board 
 
 

7. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT  
 

7.1  The work on producing these values was started in October 2022.  

 It was decided by CLT and ECLT that we should go out to all staff, members and strategic 
partners to garner their support and input to the values.  

 The intention is to incorporate our values into the entire employee lifecycle, including 
recruitment and induction of new staff and performance reviews.  

 The values are also intended to be the benchmark of decisions made for Employee 
Awards and have already been demonstrated in PCC’s recent Staff Awards nominations.  

 Once the values are fully approved by the Employment Committee and Full Council, there 
is a communication plan to launch fully to all staff, members and strategic partners. 

 This communication plan includes internal communication announcements, and having a 
dedicated platform on Insite; adding the values to Teams backdrops and email signatures; 
using the values as criteria to judge employee awards; adding values to recruitment 
questions and performance discussions as a benchmark for decisions. 

 
8. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 

 
8.1 Having PCC values incorporated into the employee lifecycle and communicating what this means 

in terms of behaviours expected of staff and to residents, members and strategic partners, should: 

 Enhance employee engagement 

 Improve employee retention 

 Enhance PCC as an employer of choice 

 Contribute to services provided for residents, improve partnership relationships with 
members and with strategic partners.  

 All stakeholders expect an outcome from the workshops held in January and February so 
initial expectations and engagement is likely to be diminished due to further delays in 
launching the values. 

 
9. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
9.1 Alternatives considered are: 

a) Do nothing and continue with the values that were adopted in 2018 jointly with 
Cambridgeshire County Council (CCC). This option was rejected as the values are not in line 
with the Corporate Strategy and were agreed when PCC and CCC had many joint services. 
Therefore, it was felt that the current values are no longer fit-for-purpose. 

b) Go back to re-visit the collaboration and contributions from staff, members, and strategic 
partners. This option was rejected as this would likely cause loss of engagement that 
stakeholders’ contributions were not considered or to be valuable. 

 
10. IMPLICATIONS 

 
 Financial Implications 

 

31



10.1 Recommendations to launch and publicise the values would need limited investment as most 
publicity would be through Insite, Team meetings, screen savers, and monitors. A small 
investment could be utilised to produce sails for reception, but this would be optional. 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

10.2 None 
 

 Equalities Implications 
 

10.3 None 
 

11. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

11.1 None 
 

 
12. APPENDICES 

 
12.1 Appendix 1 – PCC Values 

 
 
 
 
 

 

32



33



T
his page is intentionally left blank

34


	Agenda
	3a 2 March 2023
	3b 21 March 2023
	3c 25 April 2023
	4 Pension Discretionary Policy Shared Cost AVC's
	5 Introduction of New Values Across Peterborough City Council
	Item 5. Appendix 1 PCC Values final (1)
	Slide 1



